1958

# Rex Holland v. Arthur E. Moreton et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

## NATURE OF THE APPEAL

This is an appeal from the judgment entered in favor of the defendant Moreton and against the plaintiff Rex Holland in his individual capacity, after the jury had rendered judgment in Rex's favor in the sum of \$95,833 general damages and \$25,000 punitive damages, from the judgment on the directed verdict entered in favor of the defendant Moreton and against the plaintiff Rex Holland as Administrator with the Will Annexed of the Estate of John G. Holland, deceased and from the judgment on the directed verdict in favor of the other defendants and against both plaintiffs (304, 305).

The plaintiff, Rex Holland, in his individual capacity, asks the Court to set aside the judgment entered against him notwithstanding the verdict, and to reinstate the judgment in his favor against Moreton in the sum of \$120,833.00 and to add thereto interest on \$95,833 at the rate of 6% per annum from the 20th day of December 1948. He further asks the court to set aside the judgment on the directed verdict entered against him and in favor of the defendants other than Moreton and to enter judgment in his favor against the such defendants in a like amount or, in the alternative, to grant a new trial against such defendants.

The plaintiff Rex Holland as Administrator with

the Will Annexed of the Estate of John G. Holland, Deceased, asks this Court to reverse the judgment entered on the directed verdict in favor of all defendants and to enter judgment in his favor and against the defendants in the amount rendered against Moreton or in the alternative to grant the administrator a new trial.

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Rex Holland and John Holland, his father, and one Murie owned three mining claims. The defendant Moreton, an attorney at law, duly licensed to practice law in the State of Utah, fraudulently obtained a one-fourth interest in said mining claims. Thereafter, acting as their attorney, he negotiated a sale of the property. He fraudulently concealed from the co-owners that the total sale price of the property was \$387,500.00 and he fraudulently concealed from the co-owners the fact that he himself received \$287,500.00 for the one-fourth interest that he had fraudulently obtained from the co-owners while each of his clients received but \$33,333.33 for an undivided one-fourth interest.

This is an action for damages against the Moretons resulting from attorney Moreton's breach of his confidential relationship with his clients, the Hollands and Murie, by fraudulently misrepresenting the value of the property, by concealing from them the total price received for the entire property and the amount he received for his purported one fourth interest in the property and for otherwise overreaching and taking advantage of his clients from the very beginning.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The three prospectors, Rex Holland, his father, John Holland (now deceased), and William C. Murie, jointly located the three mining claims known as the M & H Claims in 1941 and 1943 (Ex. P-1, P-2 and P-3). These men were of trusting disposition and entirely lacking in business experience. The transaction involved herein was the only sale of mining property with which they had ever been connected (526). They not only had no idea of what the value of their property was but, additionally they had no way of determining its value (669).

(a)

Attorney Moreton in the spring of 1946 went to Cedar City and made arrangements to see the co-owners at the Escalante Hotel (331, 332). The inference is that he knew a great deal about the potential value of the claims which the co-owners did not know and he sent for them.

At this first meeting he proposed an arrangement which was accepted by them, whereby he was to be their attorney in the proceedings to get a patent on their property and in the sale of their property, and whereby he was to have an option to patent the property in which event he was to receive a quarter interest in their property and also an option to purchase the remaining three-fourths interest of the property (333). The agreement was reduced to writing by attorney Moreton and signed by the co-owners (333, 334). They were never given a copy of it and Moreton has never produced a copy of

it. His claim is that the document has been lost (335, 612, 615).

Plaintiff Rex Holland testified as to this first option that no time was fixed for its exercise and that no price was fixed but that both were left blank in the writing prepared by Moreton and signed by Rex, his father and Murie (333, 336). While the defendant Moreton's testimony attempts to contradict this (623, 627), the matter that is uncontradicted is this: attorney Moreton gave no adequate consideration for the option he secured on the property ultimately sold for \$387,500.00. Moreton testified that the writing, of which he had the only copy and which he did not produce (615), recited a consideration of \$1.00, but his attorney objected to a question as to whether or not even that \$1.00 was paid (626).

At this first meeting Moreton instructed the co-owners, as he did on every other occasion, not to discuss the sale of the property with anyone (445).

On July 5, 1946, Moreton wrote the co-owners again instructing them not to discuss the sale of the property with anyone (644). His reason, as announced at the trial, for giving this instruction, was that it was necessary to protect him (645).

(b)

On September 1, 1946, Moreton who had done absolutely nothing at all towards getting the claims patented (627, 628), came to Cedar City and on his plea that he needed more time (629, 651), had the option extended to April 1, 1947 (Ex. P-4). Again, he gave them

no consideration for this extension and gave them no copies of the paper he prepared and had them sign (339, 340, 657).

Moreton next went to Cedar City on or about March 10, 1947, and he still had done nothing at all in connection with patenting the claims except to talk to a surveyor (343, 663) but this time he had his clients sign a letter he had previously prepared (341, 345) (Ex. P-8) under the terms of which he was to receive a deed to a one-fourth interest in the property *immediately upon his merely filing an application for a patent survey*. This, again, was presented by him without any consideration and represented a drastic change from the original agreement that provided he was to get the one-fourth interest only when he actually patented the property.

It was at this March meeting that Moreton told the co-owners that there were 1,500,000 tons of ore on the property (343) but that because of the overburden "we could not expect to get more than 10 cents a ton" (344). Moreton said, furthermore, that they could probably get \$133,000.00 as an over-all price and of this amount the co-owners would get \$100,000.00, leaving \$33,000.00 for their lawyer, defendant Moreton (344).

Additionally, it appears, that Moreton was careful on this and frequent other occasions to point out that it might be possible to get something more than \$133,000, perhaps as much as \$155,000. While his clients agreed that he could keep whatever there might be over \$133,000, it is crystal clear on the record that this was on their belief induced by his representations that the price could



never in any event be more than \$155,000.00 and the overage never more than \$22,000 (445, 527, 529, 530, 542, 543).

(c)

On or about June, 1947, Moreton who still had not secured a patent on the property and whose options to purchase a three-fourths interest for \$100,000.00 had expired all unexercised, next prepared another document for his clients (Ex. P-5). This one gave him an option to purchase the three-fourths interest for \$100,000.00, payable either in cash or in ten annual payments, without anything for interest. Moreton testified as to this option which was for a twelve month period that he "overlooked" putting a date on it when he prepared it at his office (677, 678) and further, that this new undated option represented "quite a little difference in the original proposal" between him and his clients for which he was prepared to pay more money than \$100,000.00. He, of course, never advised his clients of this (679) when he procured their signatures to the option which he admitted he never exercised (352, 682).

In July of 1947 Moreton prepared and procured the signatures of the co-owners to a so-called Agreement of Ownership (360-361, 688) to take the place of the prior undated option (360, Exhibit D-33). This agreement of ownership recited that Moreton was to have a one-fourth interest in the property and all over \$100,000 if "said property shall be sold, leased or otherwise disposed of on a tonnage basis for a sum in excess of \$133,333.33." Additionally and as also provided in the

agreement of ownership, he had his clients give him on July 23, 1947, a warranty deed for a one-fourth interest (691, 692, Exhibit P-6). Moreton confessed at the trial that in view of the fact that he had not secured a patent on the property he had not earned that one-fourth interest (701, 702) and that the agreement of ownership represented a considerable deviation from the option in that under the agreement of ownership he was not required to put up \$100,000 or get anyone else to put up \$100,000, and that further, there was no time limit in the agreement of ownership as to when anything had to be done (698).

From his own testimony it is clear he never advised his clients of the significance of any of the documents they signed and (except for purported tax considerations which clearly appear to have been an afterthought) the only reason he gave at the trial for having them sign the documents of July 23, 1947, was that *he “preferred to have it that way to evidence my ownership as a matter of record”* (695). In any event, the property was neither sold, leased or otherwise disposed of *on a tonnage basis* so as to fall within the terms of the agreement of ownership.

Moreton next prepared and filed the application for patent August 25, 1947 (Ex. P-12). He also prepared the other papers necessary to be signed by the co-owners (Ex. P-13).

(d)

On September 14, 1948, Rex Holland had a chance meeting with one Parley Canfield on the street (381).



Canfield, who had been a total stranger to Rex (368), mentioned that there were 3,500,000 tons of ore in the M & H claims and iron ore had been bringing 25 cents a ton (381, 382). Since Moreton had told them there were only 1,500,000 tons of ore in the M & H and the price was only 10 cents a ton, Rex didn't know what to think (446), so that night he wrote this letter (Ex. P-14) to Dr. Walther Mathesius, President of Columbia, hoping that Mathesius would advise him.

Mathesius took the letter to Attorney Moreton and discussed it with him (717, 786), but neither of them answered it or ever at any time mentioned it to Rex or the other co-owners (438-439, 526-527).

In the meantime Canfield admitted to Rex that he had been mistaken as to the tonnage contained in the M & H claims (383) and that he had been talking about somebody else's claims (382, 383). Rex had been told by Moreton that while some iron ore would bring 25 cents a ton, the iron ore in the M & H claims could only bring about 10 cents a ton because of the size of the overburden (344). Rex concluded that since Canfield had been entirely wrong as to the amount of tonnage, that therefore Canfield's price information was not applicable to the M & H claims and that Moreton had advised the co-owners correctly on the tonnage and the price (385). Rex's confidence in Moreton was now restored (527). His belief in everything that Moreton had said in the past was confirmed and he believed everything that Moreton said thereafter (540). For that reason Rex never asked Moreton how much he (Moreton) was get-

ting for his (Moreton's) one-fourth interest or how much was being obtained for the entire property (527, 528).

(e)

The record establishes that Moreton was dealing with Mathesius before April of 1946 (831, 857, Letter of July 5, 1946, set out at 982). However, Moreton freely admitted that his first discussion with Mathesius concerning the price which Columbia would pay for the M & H claims occurred at a meeting between Moreton and Mathesius in Moreton's office on October 8, 1948 (784).

At this meeting, Mathesius stated that since Columbia had acquired the Milner claims it would be interested in leasing the M & H properties. Mathesius asked Moreton what the ore was worth and he replied that it was worth 25 cents a ton. Mathesius readily agreed to this price (784, 785).

A few days after October 8, Mathesius and Moreton had a telephone conversation in which they agreed that the tonnage basis would be 1.55 million tons (794). According to Moreton, the entire "negotiations" consisted of 38 words (789). Mathesius told Moreton that Columbia would pay 25 cents a ton based upon *Columbia's* estimate of the tonnage and Moreton answered that that was agreeable with him (789).

It is nowhere even claimed by anyone that there were ever any separate negotiations covering either the three-fourths interest of the co-owners or the one-fourth interest of Moreton.

(f)

After Mathesius and Moreton had agreed upon a

total price of \$387,500 Columbia sent to Moreton a *single document* containing the offer of sale for the entire property by all four co-owners for a total sum of \$387,500 (551, 769). This use of a single document was in accordance with the standard practice of Columbia when they were dealing for property owned by more than one person (549).

Moreton, however, advised Columbia that he wanted the transaction embodied, not in a single document, but in two sets of documents: one to cover the sale of the three-fourths interest of his clients at a price of \$100,000 and the other to cover the sale of his one-fourth interest for \$287,500.00 (551, 771).

Additionally, Moreton, in compliance with the prior request of Mathesius, procured the signature of his clients to Exhibit P-19 dated October 13, 1948 (388). In this document the tonnage is referred to as 1.5 million tons but there is nothing in it with respect to the total price or the price per ton which is to be paid (771).

Columbia agreed to Moreton's request that they abandon their standard practice of using a single document embodying the offers of all four owners and instead employed two sets of documents, one covering the offer of Moreton's clients and the other covering the sale of Moreton's one-fourth interest alone (551). Thereupon Moreton proceeded to procure the signature of his clients to another document dated October 16, 1948, prepared by him and stating that the co-owners were satisfied with the sum of \$100,000 and that Moreton could sell his interest

for whatever price Columbia and he could agree upon (780, Exhibit P-16).

On November 20th, still another letter was prepared by Moreton (Exhibit P-17) and presented to his clients for their signatures (794, 795). It stated that it was no concern of theirs as to when, to whom, at what price or upon what terms Moreton may sell his interest. Again, as in the letters of October 13th and 16th, notwithstanding that all matters of price covering both Moreton's interest and his clients' interest had been clearly and completely resolved, the document which Moreton induced his clients to sign was so misleadingly worded as to make it appear that the matter of price was still for future determination.

It further appears that originally Moreton and Mathesius had agreed that the purchase by Columbia would be handled under an escrow agreement and that this arrangement was abandoned (791, 792). Of course, had the transaction been handled by escrow all parties would have been fully informed as to all matters, including the total price paid and the amount received by defendant Moreton.

(g)

On December 19, 1948, the co-owners received a telegram from Moreton requesting that they come to Salt Lake. On December 20, 1948, they presented themselves at Moreton's office (392). Dr. Mathesius and Mr. Heald of Columbia arrived. Heald turned over some papers to Moreton who then read the deed conveying the interest of the co-owners to Columbia. The co-owners then affixed their signatures to a receipt (393).

There was nothing said at this meeting about the amount of money that Moreton was to received for his interest. There was no mention of a figure of \$387,500 nor of a figure of \$287,500. No revenue stamps were put on the deeds at that time (395).

We realize that there is a conflict of evidence in this matter, but the evidence must be viewed in its light most favorable to plaintiffs and both Rex Holland (393-399) and Clara Holland (933-939) testified concerning this matter as above outlined. Rex and his mother both testified that at the final meeting of December 20, 1948, neither Moreton, Mathesius, nor anyone else informed them of the contract between Columbia and Moreton covering the sale of Moreton's purported one-fourth interest and the amount Columbia was paying Moreton for his purported one-fourth interest and also the amount Columbia was paying for the entire property; and that Moreton also concealed the revenue stamps which were to be attached to the separate deeds covering the interest of Moreton and the interests of the co-owners.

This testimony is of particular significance in view of the fact that Moreton testified that he and Mathesius had agreed in October of 1948 that the co-owners were to be fully informed as to the total price being paid and as to the price paid for Moreton's interest, at the closing of the transaction on Dec. 20, 1948 (777-780, 812). It would appear obvious, of course, that neither Moreton nor Mathesius would have felt the need for any such arrangements except for the fact that they were both fully aware of the ignorance of the co-owners as to the true situation. Thus



it is both express and implicit on the record in this case that all parties were aware that the co-owners did not know the true situation prior to December 20, 1948, and of course, the testimony of the co-owners which the jury had a right to believe and did believe and which is to be treated for the purposes of this appeal as conclusive, was that they were not informed on December 20, 1948.

Although because of the confidential relationship which existed between the parties, it is not necessary to show reliance by Rex and his father, John Holland, on Moreton's representations the testimony and evidence at the trial (395-399), was that had Rex known Moreton was receiving \$287,500 for his interest or that the ore was being sold at twenty-five cents per ton or that the entire property was worth \$387,500, he would not have signed the offers to sell the  $\frac{3}{4}$  interest for \$100,000 (Exhibit P-15), the letter of October 16 (Exhibit P-16), the letter of October 13 (Exhibit P-21), the letter of November 20 (Exhibit P-17), or the warranty deed (Exhibit P-22); that he would not have accepted the check and that he would not have signed the receipt for the check from Columbia (P-21) or signed the statutory deed to Columbia (Exhibit P-22) or the warranty deed to Moreton (Exhibit P-7).

It was, of course, Moreton's duty to tell Rex and the co-owners these things. Moreton at the trial, after days of evasion, finally broke down under examination and admitted that he never told the co-owners how much he was getting for the property (514, lines 24-30):

“Q. (By Mr. Pollack) Will you now tell me when

it was that you told the Hollands and Murie, for the very first time, that Columbia was paying 25 cents a ton for the M&H claims?

A. I never told them that at any time.

Q. You never told them?

A. No.”

(h)

Three years later it was discovered and it is now admitted that Moreton sold the entire property for \$387,500 and that he received for the one-fourth interest which he had fraudulently procured, \$287,500.00 (400, 401).

It is manifest on the record that the confidential relationship existing between Moreton and the Hollands continued at least up until the time of the actual discovery of his fraud and that appears from the fact that when John Holland died on October 9, 1949, Moreton was employed by the Hollands to act as attorney for them and the estate of John Holland and that he accepted that employment and continued in it until finally after the actual discovery of the fraud by Rex Holland, he was discharged (940).

Rex first learned that the property had been sold for \$387,500 in October of 1951 (400). He was at the home of Bishop Parson U. Webster of Cedar City. Canfield stated that the M & H Claims had brought \$387,000. Rex was shocked to learn of this total price and after he considered for some time he wrote Mr. Moreton (401). The letter he wrote was introduced as Exhibit P-21. In this letter he reminds Moreton that Moreton had lead them to believe that there was 1.6 million tons of good

grade iron ore for which the steel company would pay the owners 10 cents per ton. This was the first time that the plaintiff, Rex, had learned of the fraud which had been perpetrated upon him by his lawyer Moreton.

Moreton answered Rex by a letter of December 18, 1951 (Ex. P-25) in which Moreton threatened to put Rex in jail if Rex pursued the matter any further. Copy of this letter was attached to plaintiff's amended complaint (43) and was, of course, introduced in evidence at the trial. There is no clearer indicia of Moreton's fraud in this case than his answer to Rex's letter. It not only gives a clear indication of Moreton's guilt and his knowledge of his guilt, but it also indicates Moreton knew he was dealing with simple naive people.

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