1958

Rex Holland v. Arthur E. Moreton et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

The various writings that we call attention to were received or signed by the Hollands after Rex’s letter to Dr. Mathesius of September 14, 1948, and at a time when the idea of tonnage and the price of 25¢ per ton was fresh in Holland’s mind. To conclude otherwise would do violence to the plain meaning of words. In connection with the agreement of ownership Rex testified:

“‘A. Well, we read it over—yes, we discussed it with Mr. Moreton that the price was the same, that the ownership was the same. And after we could see that the ownerships and the price was the same, then we signed it.

A. In other words, you were still to get a hundred thousand dollars for your three-fourths remaining interest that you, your mother and your father and Murie had?

A. Yes sir.''' (R. 507).

With reference to the offer to Columbia Iron Mining Company of October 16, 1948, Exhibit P15, Rex testified:

“Q And it was according to your offer to sell, wasn't it?

A That is right.

Q And then the question was asked:

‘Q. And this is the bargain you thought you were making and did make to sell your property to the Columbia Iron Mining Company?

A. Yes sir.''' (R. 509).

It is undisputed that the plaintiff asked the defendant for, and received from him several advances on the purchase price. On July 14, 1948, (Exhibit D32) the plaintiff wrote to the defendant requesting an advance of \$600.00 upon the purchase price, stating in said letter “Because you understand how the mining claims are held and that the anticipated early sale of the patented M & H's would return the money to you I am not going to try a Bank for a loan.” On November 30, 1948, the plaintiff wrote the defendant, “if convenient I would appreciate another \$200.00 check which together with the \$300.00 sent me last month will be deducted from the monies received from the sale of the M & H's.” (Exhibit D30).

It is undisputed in the record at the trial that \$1,-

500.00 in all was paid by the defendant to the co-owners on account of their several requests, which sums of money were paid by the defendant in reliance upon his option and the written affirmation thereof by the co-owners to Columbia Iron Mining Company (R. 682).

The question of discovery and time thereof should not be an issue in this case, because it would seem from the decision of this Court, dismissing the steel companies, that this Court was of the opinion, as was the trial court, that the co-owners had been made fully acquainted with the total purchase price at the time of the closing of the transaction. Surely this question of "discovery" cannot again be litigated between the same parties and in the same case.

Plaintiff could not discover what he already knew. Rex's testimony with respect to the time he "discovered" the total purchase price does not square up with his letter to Dr. Mathesius of September 14, 1948, from which it is evident that he knew the prevailing price was 25c per ton. He knew the estimated tonnage was 1.55M tons.

Furthermore, Rex's letter to Moreton under date of December 16, 1951, Exhibit P24, indicates definitely his knowledge of the total purchase price, which, as he states therein, was a "matter of common knowledge" in Cedar City. What he complains about in this letter is *not* that he had just learned of the total purchase price, but he complains of the fact "*that I am getting a lot of both criticism and advise (sic) from many people who now have learned what actually happened in the sale of the*

*M & H claims. I do not know just where it originated but it is common knowledge that the price received for the sale was \$387,000.00 * * *. Because of the criticism I am getting from men who are interested in the continued development of the iron deposits I am keeping this among us * * *. * * * with the outside influence from others not being considered * * *. I have avoided as much criticism as I can and yet because it continues I have now gone to one of the best law firms in Salt Lake and found on what ground I stand. * * * What I want to do is to come to some solution where we both will feel better about the whole thing so I am going to present my side of the story to you."* This is followed by an offer to sell to Mr. Moreton a 1% interest for \$75,000 of Rex's 20% interest in a titanium property.

The significant thing about the foregoing letter is not that Rex had just "discovered" the total purchase price, but that "he is being criticised by others" who do not understand the division of the purchase price, which was a matter of "common knowledge."

The so-called time of "discovery" (in spite of all the written documents and letters to Columbia and Moreton, Rex's letter to Dr. Mathesius, and that the price per ton and purchase price was a matter of common knowledge in Cedar City), is also an ingenious afterthought designed to toll the running of the statute of limitations. It would be difficult for Rex to "discover" what he knew at all times. In this connection the Court's attention is directed to the testimony of Moreton relating to the conversation with Rex at Cedar City in November of 1948

with respect to the settlement of the claim of Robert A. Arthur, in which conversation Moreton declined to accept the offer of plaintiffs that the sum of \$1500.00 so paid to Arthur be deducted from the co-owners' share of the purchase price. In this conversation Moreton told the co-owners "I am making a big profit out of this transaction, as you well know, on the tonnage, and the 25 cents per ton," to which statement Rex replied: "I think you are." This conversation was never denied (R. 773-777).

However, as we have pointed out, the time of discovery is a matter of law for the Court to determine. Rex's letter was written December 16, 1951, but suit was not instituted until December 19, 1952. Evidently Holland was not too greatly disturbed by this criticism.

In view of the record herein it cannot be said as contended that plaintiffs believed that the purchase price "might be as much as \$155,000, but no more," and that Moreton was to receive the difference between that sum and \$100,000.00.

In view of the overall price for Moreton's interest fixed in the option, price per ton and tonnage was of no concern of theirs. By their written communications and their participation in the closing of the transaction they thereby expressed affirmance and acquiescence to Moreton as well as to Columbia. Without such approval by the co-owners Columbia would not have purchased the interest of the co-owners, nor that of Moreton.

Plaintiffs are now estopped to contend that Moreton did not act within his rights, but if not within his rights as contended by the plaintiffs, then certainly under

the express authority given to him. Plaintiffs induced Moreton and assisted and encouraged him in every way to make the sale on the basis he did. They accepted the benefits and the patenting of the claim and received the proceeds therefrom.

Under such circumstances as held by this Court in the case of *Moses v. Archie MacFarland & Son*, 119 Utah 602, 280 P.2d 571, the plaintiff by his conduct indicated his assent to become a party to the transaction and cannot "escape ratification thereof." To the same effect is the case of *LeVine v. Whitehouse*, 37 Utah 260, 109 P.2.

In Vol. 1, *Williston on Contracts*, Revised edition, Section 278, page 807, it is said:

"But silence may justify reasonable inferences, as well as positive action, and a person is no more justified in keeping silent when he knows, or ought to know, that a reasonable person will regard his silence as assent, than he is in making a gesture that he knows is ordinarily regarded as a manifestation of assent, and afterwards asserting that it was not so intended and that he made the gesture merely in the exercise of his privilege to move his hand about in the way that seemed most comfortable. So a purported principal may not be wilfully ignorant, nor may he purposely shut his eyes to means of information within his possession and control and thereby escape ratification 'if the circumstances are such that he could reasonably have been expected to dissent unless he were willing to be a party to the transaction.' "

What plaintiffs are now complaining about is that the transaction resulted in a greater profit than was perhaps originally anticipated, and that, therefore, it was

a bad bargain and that they should not only be relieved of the same but that they should recover punitive damages. It was Moreton who took the risks, because except for the purchase of the Geneva Plant by Columbia from the United States, and purchase of the Milner property, there would have been no sale perhaps for many years, as admitted by the plaintiffs at page 68 of their brief. See *Ruthrauff v. Silver King Western Min. & Mill. Co.*, 95 Utah 279, 80 P.2d 338; *Great West. Min. Co. v. Woodmas of Alston Min. Co.*, (Colo. 1890), 23 P. 908, and *Beebe v. James* (Mont. 1932), 8 P.2d 803.

POINT VI.

THE TRUST RELATIONSHIP, IF ANY, WAS REPUDIATED LONG PRIOR TO DECEMBER 20, 1948.

Rex is not a stupid individual, although both he and his counsel would have him appear to be so. Simultaneously with the offer to sell for \$100,000.00, and in the letter prepared by Moreton dated the same day, Exhibit P16, Rex, his father and Murie unequivocally said that the money that they were to receive would be in full for their interest and that Moreton may sell his interest for whatever price is agreed upon and that the entire proceeds therefrom will be "his sole property, it being his right to determine and to receive, whatever amount you may agree upon with him." A repudiation could not be couched in stronger terms and it becomes all the more meaningful when viewed in the light of Rex's letter of September 14th.

That the statute of limitations starts to run at the time of the repudiation of the confidential relationship

has been well stated by this Court in *Felkner v. Dooly*, 28 Utah 236, 78 P. 365, as follows:

“Without further reviewing in detail the facts and proceedings of the former cases in which the trust funds in question were the subject-matter of litigation, it sufficeth to state that the record shows that the plaintiffs and their assignees, for nearly 10 years prior to the commencement of this action, had knowledge of the fact that Dooly had repudiated and denied the trust as to the proceeds of the sale of the Charles Dickens property. And the authorities uniformly hold that when a trustee of an express trust denies the trust and assumes the absolute ownership of the trust property, and this claim of ownership is brought home to the cestui que trust, a cause of action exists in favor of the latter from the time he receives notice of the repudiation of the trust by the trustee, and the statute of limitations begins to run from that time.

In the case of *Thomas v. Glendinning*, 13 Utah 47, this court held that: ‘It is well settled that, as between the trustee and cestui que trust, the statute of limitations does not operate, in cases of express or direct trust, so long as such trust continues. But when the trustee denies the trust and assumes ownership of the trust property, or denies his liability or obligation under the trust relation in such manner that the cestui que trust has actual or even constructive notice of the repudiation of the trust, then the statute of limitations attaches and begins to run from that time, for such denial or adverse claim is an abandonment of the fiduciary character in which the trustee has stood to the property.’ ”

Mr. Moreton’s letter of September 25, 1948, Exhibit D36, repudiated the alleged relationship. He stated in no

uncertain terms that he expected to get much more than the amount stated in the ownership agreement for his own account. The telegram of October 8, 1948, is another repudiation. Moreton said that he was bargaining for the sale of the M & H interests "for your fixed amount in cash and for as much more as I can get as agreed and as set forth in our written agreements."

Every subsequent letter that Moreton prepared for the signature of the Hollands, and in which they said in effect that Moreton could receive in his own right all over \$100,000.00, was an express repudiation of all that the plaintiffs would contend for now, whether it be on the theory of principal and agent or attorney and client. The case of *Felkner v. Dooly*, supra, holds in accordance with recognized principles that the statute of limitations attaches and begins to run from the time the trustee denies the trust and assumes ownership of the trust property, or denies his liability or obligation under the trust relation in such manner that the beneficiary has actual or even constructive notice of the repudiation of the trust.

POINT VII.

THE STATUTES OF LIMITATION HAVE RUN AGAINST THE ACTION BY REX HOLLAND.

Subdivision (3) of Section 78-12-26, *U.C.A.* 1953, requires an action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake to be commenced within three years of the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake. The plaintiffs concede that the cause of action accrued on December 20, 1948 (R. 135). We say that it accrued earlier, but be that as it may more than three

years elapsed from December 20, 1948, and the filing of this action on December 19, 1952. There can be no question but what Rex Holland knew or had the means of knowing on December 20, 1948, the amount that Moreton received or was to receive for his interest in the property. To believe otherwise would distort reality into a shambles. In *Gibson v. Jensen*, supra, the evidence was undisputed that the plaintiff was fully advised of the fraud by a letter to her from the person who it was claimed practiced the fraud, in which letter there was a statement respecting his faults in the transaction. It was not necessary for the plaintiff to be informed of all of the details. If she was made aware of the principal or controlling fact, it was sufficient.

“By that we mean it was sufficient if she was fully informed of such facts as would put a person of ordinary intelligence and prudence upon inquiry. If she was so informed, then she had all the information contemplated by the statute.”

The statute of limitations is now generally regarded as a statute of repose. This is so in cases of fraud as well as in other cases. The finding of the trial court in the *Gibson* case was that the plaintiff did not discover the facts of the transaction until on or about the 10th of December, 1913, although she used due and reasonable diligence in her endeavor to do so. The Supreme Court held that the evidence was undisputed that the plaintiff was fully advised of the fraud by the letter of July 27, 1909, and called attention to 28A *Words and Phrases*, page 500 where it is said:

“Whatever is ‘notice’ enough to excite attention and put party on his guard and call for inquiry is notice of everything to which such inquiry might have led. *Rubendall v. Talla*, Okl., 119 P.2d 851, 853.”

The Court states that the statute is to be given a fair and reasonable application and that not to do so is tantamount to a setting aside of its “wholesome provision.” The Court also states that it has demonstrated many times that where cases are timely instituted it will lend its aid in actions for fraud to the full extent of its powers, and that while the temptation is very strong to aid the aged plaintiff “yet the duty imposed upon us to remain within the law is equally strong; and the latter duty must, as it always should, prevail.”

The Montana case of *Kerrigan v. O’Meara*, 227 P. 819, holds that there must be some affirmative act or representation, or what is equivalent thereto designed to prevent, and which does prevent, discovery. The Montana Court quotes with approval from *Wood v. Carpenter*, 11 Otto. 135, 25 L.Ed. 807:

“Statutes of limitation are vital to the welfare of society and are favored in the law. They are found and approved in all systems of enlightened jurisprudence. They promote repose by giving security and stability to human affairs. An important public policy lies at their foundation. They stimulate to activity and punish negligence. While time is constantly destroying the evidence of rights, they supply its place by a presumption which renders proof unnecessary. Mere delay, extending to the limit prescribed, is itself a conclusive bar. The bane and antidote go together.”

See also *Teeter v. Brown* (Wash.) 228 P. 291.

In *Towle v. Sweeney* (Cal. 1905), 83 P. 74, the Court said:

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